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develop in-depth knowlege



I am delighted to report on Umalusi’s activities for the financial year ending March 2007. This

is my first report as Umalusi Council Chairperson, since taking over from John Pampallis in

May 2006 when the term of office of Umalusi’s previous Council ended. I am very pleased

that Mr Pampallis and some of the other members of the previous Council agreed to serve

on Umalusi’s second Council, as this provided a valuable element of continuity.

Earlier this year the Council endorsed the approach taken by Umalusi to quality

assurance. Standards are monitored through a combination of evaluating curriculum and

qualification documents, quality assuring assessment, and monitoring institutional quality.

Umalusi evaluates both qualifications and curricula for the purpose of accreditation; and

qualifications are accredited together with the curricula for the proposed subjects or units

that comprise the qualification.

Umalusi’s moderation of external assessment provides a better understanding of how

curriculum and qualifications are implemented, and these arrangements allow Umalusi to

make judgements about the levels of cognitive challenge in assessment. Because of the

limitations of both internal and external assessment, as well as the many other factors that

influence the quality of the learning experience, institutional quality is also monitored.

The Senior Certificate Examination process was probably the most visible and demanding

aspect of Umalusi’s annual work plan. A unique dimension of the 2006 examination was that

candidates who started schooling in 1995 in a newly democratic South Africa wrote it. These

candidates were the first group of learners to be exposed to outcomes-based education. A

total of 742,289 candidates (both full-time and part-time) wrote the 2006 examination as

compared to 729,875 who wrote in 2005. This was the largest group to date to sit for the

Senior Certificate Examinations. Adherence to policies and guidelines ensured a relatively

problem free examination process.

It is clear that the various departments of education are running good examinations,

and this is no small feat, especially in rural contexts, where rough terrain and muddy roads

make it difficult even to get papers and scripts to and from centres. This is certainly a marked

improvement since the early days of examination leaks and other such problems in our

new democracy. The challenge now is to get teaching and learning right in the schools.

Compliance site visits introduced in the 2005/6 financial year to some Further Education

and Training (FET) colleges and independent schools were extended to cover more schools

during this financial year. Just fewer than 100 independent schools, including some that

have not yet applied for accreditation; and some schools of questionable provenance were

visited. The purpose of these visits was to improve Umalusi’s presence in the sector and the

band; to verify information provided in self-evaluation reports by provisionally accredited

providers; and to encourage more schools to seek accreditation.

Report of the Chairperson
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The discussion around standardisation has become more urgent with the imminent

implementation of new FET exit examinations. An Umalusi seminar organised in November

2006 began a process of reviewing the manner in which the standardisation of examination

results takes place. The discussion involved Umalusi Council members, national and provincial

departments of education staff, the South African Qualifications Authority (SAQA), the Higher

Education Quality Committee (HEQC), Higher Education South Africa (HESA), teacher and

governing body formations, academics and others.

Umalusi continues its quality promotion activities, which include interacting with similar

organisations and examinations councils outside the country. These activities include

participation in conferences, seminars and visits by members of staff to other countries.

In conclusion, I would like to thank our Chief Executive Officer, Dr Peliwe Lolwana and

her staff for the sterling job they do to ensure that Umalusi remains a standard bearer in

quality assurance. I also want to thank the Chief Operating Officer, Mark Potterton, for the

contribution he made in his short stay at Umalusi and wish him well for the future.

JOHN VOLMINK

Chairperson

credible certificates
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer
Putting our best foot forward

To most people, Umalusi’s duties seem to start in October, when the matric candidates sit

for examinations, and end in December when the results are announced. This perception

has arisen because, as custodians of quality assurance for the matric examinations, Umalusi’s

activities come under intense media scrutiny during this period, culminating in the Minister

of Education’s annual announcement of the results. Particular attention is given to

irregularities, standards and quality. The reality, however, is that our quality assurance activities

are conducted throughout the year, and cover a wide range of functions.

One of Umalusi’s biggest roles is indeed quality assuring the examinations at the exit

points of the two bands from the South African Certification Council (SAFCERT). Our

research in 2004 on the standards of the Senior Examinations indicated where the process

needed to be strengthened and in the past year we have tried to steer the system in the

general and further education and training bands. These interventions began in 2005, but

it was only in 2006 that Umalusi’s interventions in improving the standard of question

papers started to show results. Umalusi now looks forward enthusiastically to the

implementation of the new Senior Certificate in 2008.

The year under review was not significantly different from previous years with regard

to reported and discovered irregularities in examinations. This is something that happens

throughout the world, as people try to improve their examination achievement by whatever

means possible. What was very different this time round, however, was the efficiency with

which the irregularities were dealt. A key reason for this is the common understanding of

processes and procedures has deepened between Umalusi and the assessment bodies.

Given that our role in the examination process is to ensure assessment bodies operate

according to prescribed standards, we published and circulated a booklet entitled Quality

Assurance of Assessment Policies, Directives, Guidelines and Requirements.

It was our faith in the effectiveness of these processes that influenced our reaction to

the discovery of a very small ‘piece’ of the Geography Standard Grade paper in Sabie in

October. The sober manner in which the matter was resolved vindicated our stance, and I

am happy to report that our trust in the system was not misplaced.

Systems, processes and procedures are only as good as the dedication of the people

implementing them. In 2006 we introduced a concept of shadow monitors during the

examination process. The purpose of these monitors was to visit examination centres

unannounced and literally shadow the assessment body monitors and to verify that they

conducted themselves in accordance with stated processes and procedures. This system

worked well and also assisted in providing us with first-hand information on what actually
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happens at examination centres. This has proved to be invaluable in assisting us to refine

our quality control systems.

My passion to improve the standards in Adult Basic Education and Training (ABET), as

well as those of Vocational Education and Training (VET), is well known amongst my colleagues

and associates. I reluctantly report that while standards in the Senior Certificate Examination

question papers have improved markedly over the past few years, progress in the ABET and

VET examinations has been slow. Increased effort needs to be made to reduce predictability

and to ensure that cognitive demands are raised in these examinations. More attention also

needs to be paid to the manner in which internal assessments are carried out and how

practical subjects are assessed. More importantly, we need to move faster in developing

curriculum and qualifications, which are relevant to adults and learners destined for the

labour market.

Last year, Umalusi accelerated its provisional accreditation system in all its sectors. Umalusi

attended to the issues of accrediting private providers, which have up until now worked

under the quality assurance systems of the Sector Education and Training Authorities (SETAs).

This process continues to unfold as Further Education and Training (FET) private providers

register with the Department of Education. Provisional accreditation with Umalusi is a pre-

requisite in this registration process.

Good progress has been made in the independent schools’ sector with regard to

accreditation. The initial evaluation of 87 independent schools has validated Umalusi’s decision

not to delegate this function. The results of this evaluation have been enriching and instructive

to Umalusi as well as the schools themselves. This exercise has alerted us to further issues of

which we would not have been aware if we had simply adopted the textbook approach to

quality assurance. We are pleased by the enthusiasm of the independent schools’ sector.

In 2006 we continued to benefit from interaction with our peers in conferences, seminars

and forums, which we organised or were invited to. Umalusi published the results of a

comparative study between some courses offered at high schools and those offered at FET

colleges. We then invited educators from both the schools and FET colleges to share their

comments on the study, entitled Apples and Oranges. In June Umalusi organised a

conference on assessment which brought together education experts from the Southern

African Development Community (SADC); in November Umalusi held a standardisation

seminar which also brought together experts to discuss the way forward on a topic that

plays a critical role in the examination process. The

outcomes of these conferences have been reported in

our quarterly newsletter, Makoya, as well as in

publications produced specifically on these topics.

Lessons from these conferences and seminars add

to Umalusi’s collective body of knowledge and

influence the decisions we take in our day-to-day

operations.

In 2005 Umalusi decided to establish a framework

through which the integrity of qualifications and curricula

would be judged. This was a sensible point to start to consult

and garner support on the changes required to the National

Qualifications Framework (NQF) and the ensuing quali-

fications terrain. At the same time, Umalusi

chose to explore a more direct approach to

establishing the function of monitoring the

adequacy and standards of qualifications and

curricula, by developing its guidelines for

evaluating curriculum. As the NQF terrain

continuously unfolds, Umalusi is ready to open

up consultations on the proposed qualifi-

cations framework of the general and further
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NUMBER OF CERTIFICATES PRINTED 2006/7

1 Senior Certificate with

Endorsement (1st issue) 109,670

2 Senior Certificate (1st issue) 331,374

3 N3 Certificate (1st issue) 7,698

4 Senior Certificate with

Endorsement (combinations) 816

5 Senior Certificate (combinations,

re-issues and duplicates) 63,838

6 N3 Certificate (combinations) 9,989

7 GETC (ABET Level 4) Certificate

(1st issue) 1,080

8 GETC (ABET Level 4) Certificate

(combinations, re-issues and

duplicates) 757

9 Subject Certificates (Senior certificate) 304,784

10 Subject Certificate (N3) 57,571

11 GETC (ABET Level 4) Learning Area

Certificate 32,482

12 National Senior Certificate 2,643

TOTAL 922,702

education bands, as well as a dialogue about our curriculum evaluation findings.

Umalusi is also aware that we need to improve communications about our day-to-

day activities. We therefore conducted a survey to establish key focus areas and as a

result adjusted and improved our direct communication with the users of our services. We

also held our first Annual General Meeting in September to report directly to our stakeholders.

In addition, other unstructured meetings were held, including one with the Portfolio

Committees on Education and Labour to bring members of these key

stakeholders up-to-date with Umalusi’s activities.

Communication with our stakeholders was further enhanced with the

launching of our website which, in addition to providing general information

on our activities on a broader scale, enabled us to make our publications

and other items of interest available online. The Umalusi newsletter Makoya,

which provides regular reports on our activities, was also launched last year.

It has been said that you cannot know where you are going unless

you know where you come from, and in December 2006, we published a

booklet on our history, Umalusi: a Historical Perspective. The booklet was an

exercise to document our history since our inception in 2001 and

complements a previous publication on the matric examination process:

The Joint Matriculation Board – seventy-five years – achievement in

perspective (Trümpelmann, MH 1991 Cape Town: National Book Printers).

Umalusi had to change horses midway last year with the inauguration

of a new Council in May – shortly after the beginning of our financial year. I

am delighted to welcome Professor John Volmink as the new Chairperson

of our Council. Professor Volmink is a mathematician by profession and has

wide and varied experience in teaching and researching in the Mathematics

field. He is also well published, especially in the areas of curriculum, assessment

and standards. I would also like to take this opportunity to welcome the

members of Council, who are already proving to be a real asset to our

organisation. We value their wisdom and gentle counsel, particularly when

dealing with difficult matters and look forward to working together as we

move forward.

The financial year ending March 2007 has indeed been eventful, and

thanks to Umalusi’s highly talented and passionate staff members and the

guidance of the new Council, our operations have run smoothly. Looking ahead we

predict a hectic roller coaster year, as our quality assurance function of assessments in the

school sector is dramatically expanded to cover Grades 9, 11 and 12. In vocational education,

we continue to moderate and monitor the outgoing NTC3 examinations as well as the

incoming National Certificate in Vocational Education. Our institutional accreditation system

will also unfold rapidly in all sectors: independent schools, vocational colleges, and adult

education centres. As we move decisively into centralising curriculum and

assessment through assessment bodies, we are beginning to pilot our curriculum

evaluation for the various types of qualifications and subjects. Our research

continues to provide us with wisdom and a source of logic for what we do.

Umalusi looks forward to greater successes in the 2007/8 financial year

and we wish the best for all our learners, parents, schools, colleges and adult

education centres.

PELIWE LOLWANA

Chief Executive Officer
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Corporate Governance Report
The Umalusi Council endorses the principles in the Code of Corporate Practices and Conduct

recommended by the King Committee. The Council adopts the principles of openness,

integrity and accountability.

The Council operates within the terms of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), 1 of

1999, and this forms the context for corporate governance in which the Council operates.

The Council

The Council consists of fifteen members appointed by the Minister of Education. The Minister

also appoints one of the members as Chairperson. The Council is responsible for policy and

overall governance, with the day-to-day management delegated to the Chief Executive Officer.

In accordance with the General and Further Education and Training Quality Assurance Act, 58

of 2001, the Council is appointed for a period of four years. Council members can be appointed

for a second term after public nominations, but cannot serve more than two consecutive

terms in office.

Umalusi’s founding Council members were appointed for the period 8 June 2002 to 7 June

2006. Table 1 contains information about the Council members and their attendance. Their

last meeting was on 25 May 2006.

TTTTTable 1able 1able 1able 1able 1

Name Date Meetings Gender Race

appointed attended

Mr J Pampallis (Chairperson) 18.08.2004 0/1 Male White

Dr KB Reddy (Deputy Chairperson) 22.05.2002 1/1 Female Indian

Mr BK Schreuder 22.05.2002 1/1 Male White

Mr LB Beech 22.05.2002 0/1 Male Coloured

Ms T Masitara 22.05.2002 1/1 Female Black

Mr ES Sekgobela 22.05.2002 1/1 Male Black

Professor L Chisholm 22.05.2002 1/1 Female White

Dr R Singh 22.05.2002 1/1 Female Indian

Ms SEF Rees Gardener 22.05.2002 1/1 Female White

Professor NB Pityana 13.01.2004 0/1 Male Black

Ms PT Tyobeka 18.08.2004 0/1 Female Black

Ms N Mohamed 18.08.2004 1/1 Female Indian

Dr MA Makhafola 12.05.2005 1/1 Male Black

Dr PJN Steyn 12.05.2005 1/1 Male White

Dr PP Lolwana (CEO) 22.05.2002 1/1 Female Black

The Minister of Education appointed new Council members for the period 8 June 2006 to

7 June 2010. Table 2 contains information about the current Council members and their

attendance at meetings since their first meeting on 22 June 2006.

Founding Council

members and their

attendance at

meetings

Current Council

members
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Table 2 Current Council

members and their

attendance at

meetings
Name Date Meetings Gender Race

appointed attended

Professor JD Volmink (Chairperson) 09.06.2006 4/4 Male Coloured

Mr J Pampallis (Deputy Chairperson) 09.06.2006 2/4 Male White

Mr L Nengovhela 09.06.2006 4/4 Male Black

Professor M Fourie 09.06.2006 4/4 Female White

Mr GR Agocs 09.06.2006 4/4 Male White

Professor IL Rensburg 09.06.2006 3/4 Male Coloured

Professor L Chisholm 09.06.2006 3/4 Female White

Professor SG Mabizela 09.06.2006 4/4 Male Black

Dr RA Patel 09.06.2006 4/4 Male Coloured

Ms J Naidoo 09.06.2006 3/4 Female Indian

Ms PT Tyobeka November 2006 1/2 Female Black

Mr MS Rakometsi 09.06.2006 3/4 Male Black

Dr MA Makhafola 09.06.2006 3/4 Male Black

Dr ZC Sosibo 09.06.2006 3/4 Female Black

Dr PJN Steyn 09.06.2006 3/4 Male White

Dr PP Lolwana (CEO) 09.06.2006 4/4 Female Black

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises five Council members. The members are appointed for

the specific knowledge and skills they bring to the Committee. They are, amongst other

things, responsible for monitoring:

• financial spending according to the budget;

• implementing strategies and policies as approved by the Council;

• adherence to the work programme;

• adequacy of resources and staff;

• compliance with relevant legislation; and

• any special investigations undertaken by the organisation.

The Executive Committee is also responsible for any other functions delegated to it by the

Council. The Executive Committee met on five occasions during the period under review.

Table 3 contains information about the first Executive Committee members and their

attendance at meetings. Their last meeting was on 24 May 2006.
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Dr RA Patel

Mr L Nengovhela

Professor M Fourie

Dr MA Makhafola

Mr GR Agocs

Mr MS Rakometsi

Mr J Pampallis

Professor L Chisholm

Professor IL Rensburg

Dr ZC Sosibo

Dr PJN Steyn

Ms J Naidoo

Professor SG Mabizela

Ms PT Tyobeka
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Council appointed new Executive Committee members for the period 8 June 2006 to 7

June 2010. Table 4 contains information about the current Executive Committee members

and their attendance at meetings since their first meeting on 26 July 2006.

Council members who are not in the full-time service of the state are paid travel, subsistence

and other allowances. These allowances are reflected elsewhere in this report.

Internal controls

Systems of financial and internal control are in place to provide reasonable assurance that

the assets are safeguarded, and that liabilities and working capital are efficiently managed.

The CEO is the accounting officer to the Council and is charged with accounting for

monies received, payments made and moveable property purchased. The internal and

external auditors liaise closely, and any material weaknesses are brought to the attention

of the Audit Committee and Executive Committee for consideration and remedial action.

TTTTTable 4able 4able 4able 4able 4Current Executive

Committee members

and their attendance

at meetings Name Date Meetings Gender Race

appointed attended

Professor JD Volmink 09.06.2006 4/4 Male Coloured

Mr J Pampallis 09.06.2006 2/4 Male White

Dr RA Patel 09.06.2006 4/4 Male Coloured

Dr PJN Steyn 09.06.2006 3/4 Male White

Dr PP Lolwana 09.06.2006 4/4 Female Black

TTTTTable 3able 3able 3able 3able 3First Executive

Committee members

and their attendance

at meetings
Name Date Meetings Gender Race

appointed attended

Mr J Pampallis 18.08.2004 0/1 Male White

Dr KB Reddy 22.05.2002 1/1 Female Indian

Mr LB Beech 22.05.2002 1/1 Male Coloured

Mr BK Schreuder 22.05.2002 1/1 Male White

Dr PP Lolwana 22.05.2002 1/1 Female Black
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Audit Committee

The Council has an Audit Committee that meets at least twice a year in terms of the PFMA.

The Audit Committee met three times during the period under review. The committee has

an advisory function and meets to scrutinise the performance of internal and external auditors

and their appointment or retention. They are, amongst other things, responsible for:

• reviewing and scope of audits;

• reviewing the effectiveness of internal controls;

• monitoring the remedial action put in place to deal with any shortcomings;

• ensuring that audits address critical risk areas;

• ensuring that adequate measures are in place to prevent fraud;

• reviewing the adequacy of financial policies; and

• reviewing financial statements and finalising them before submission.

The Umalusi founding Council members appointed the first Audit Committee members who

served for the period 8 June 2002 to 7 June 2006. Table 5 contains information about the

Audit Committee members and their attendance. Their last meeting was on

28 June 2006.

New Council members were appointed for the period 8 June 2006 to 7 June 2010.

Subsequently, Council appointed new Audit Committee members on 31 August 2006 for a

period of two years. Table 6 contains information about the current Audit Committee members

and their attendance at meetings since their first meeting on 23 November 2006.

Table 6Current Audit

Committee members

and their attendance

at meetings
Name Date Meetings Gender Race

appointed attended

Ms A Albäck 31.08.2006 2/2 Female Black

Ms T Kentane 31.08.2006 2/2 Female Black

Dr PP Lolwana 31.08.2006 2/2 Female Black

Ms N Molalekoa 31.08.2006 2/2 Female Black

Mr CH van der Merwe 31.08.2006 1/2 Male White

Table 5First Audit Committee

members and

their attendance at

meetings

Name Date Meetings Gender Race

appointed attended

Ms A Albäck 15.08.2003 0/1 Female Black

Ms MMC du Toit 27.08.2002 1/1 Female White

Ms T Kentane 04.11.2004 0/1 Female Black

Dr PP Lolwana 27.08.2002 0/1 Female Black

Mr CH van der Merwe 27.08.2002 1/1 Male White

UMALUSI Annual Report 2006/2007
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The overall objective of Umalusi’s operations was to fulfil the organisation’s mandate as

the quality assurer in the general education and training (GET) and further education and

training (FET) bands of the national qualifications framework (NQF). Umalusi monitored

and moderated learners’ achievements in assessment and issued certificates at key points

of the education and training system. Umalusi also evaluated whether providers of

education and training had the capacity to deliver and assess qualifications at the expected

standards of quality.

In December 2006, the leadership team developed a Strategic Intent document for the

period 2007 to 2010. This document, outlined below, provides a framework of action for

the future.

Report on Operations

Mark Potterton
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Umalusi is committed to ensuring the continuous enhancement of education quality in the

delivery and outcomes of the general and further education and training bands of the national

education and training system. Umalusi commits itself, as an organisation, to:

• underpinning our work by rigour, thoroughness and consistency, and upholding

behaviours that are ethical, reliable and honest;

• implementing quality processes that impact directly on learning and learning

achievements in all of our quality assurance operations;

• improving our ideas and approaches in all our areas of operations through research;

• developing strategic partnerships carefully, and nurturing and managing these

partnerships effectively;

• providing ongoing staff training and development to ensure that staff are capable;

• using resources efficiently and ensuring that our work is characterised by service

excellence both to the internal and external public.

Umalusi envisages that we will cover the entire spectrum of sectors in relation to the quality

assurance of assessments by 2008; evaluation and accreditation by 2009, and qualifications,

curriculum and certification by 2010.



Staff at Umalusi aspire to be influential, valued and respected, and seek to be responsive,

fair and open in all that they do. During this period staff have striven to develop a modern

evaluation and monitoring system that inspires and challenges. This report covers the

activities from April 2006 to March 2007.

We embrace the following key quality principles, commitments and practices:

Citizens and stakeholders

• We respect our stakeholders.

• We aim to provide:

– professional service;

– relevant information and advice at all times;

– honest and reliable service.

• We aim to ensure that the needs of our stakeholders are understood and met through regular

communication and feedback.

Operational processes and systems

• We act with the highest level of integrity in all our operational processes and systems.

• We are committed to sustaining quality.

• We ensure that processes are communicated, documented, approved, followed, and regularly

reviewed.

• We ensure that all reports, guidelines, frameworks, and other documentation are accurate,

concise, useful, and reviewed regularly.

• We keep accurate and up-to-date records.

• We ensure there is regular and clear communication.

• We embrace lifelong-learning, improvement and growth through research and development.

Human resource management

• We respect our staff and ensure that staff are dealt with in an open and transparent manner.

• We encourage loyalty and trust and embrace diversity.

• We welcome feedback, suggestions and input from all staff.

• We are committed to the training and development of all staff to promote quality in the

organisation.

Finance and governance

• We comply with relevant accounting standards, legislation and codes of good practice in our

corporate governance.

• We are committed to the efficient and effective management of the finances and assets of the

organisation.

• We continually maintain and improve our finance and accounting systems.

Programme A: Quality assurance of assessment

Programme B: Evaluation and accreditation

Programme C: Qualifications, curriculum and certification

Programme D: Research and development

Programme E: Management support structures and governance

Programme F: Information technology systems

Programme G1: Finance and administration

Programme G2: Human resource management and development

Quality promotion

Umalusi reviewed its quality promotion procedures during 2006/7. A common quality

statement was developed as well as principles, values and practices for the organisation.

From these a set of quality indicators were developed to measure improvements. The

table below provides a glimpse into the system.
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PROGRAMME A
Quality assurance of assessment

The year 2006 was significant in that the Senior Certificate Examination was written by a

cohort of candidates, affectionately known as ‘Madiba’s children’ – these candidates started

schooling in the new democratic South Africa and were part of a number of initiatives aimed

at transforming education.

During 2006 Umalusi implemented a number of initiatives in order to ensure appropriate

standards and quality of examinations. A comprehensive document outlining Umalusi’s

policies, directives, and guidelines for quality and standards in examinations was published.

Umalusi continued its efforts to raise the cognitive demand of examination question

papers, and the criteria and instruments used for the moderation of question papers were

reviewed and enhanced to ensure that question papers were of an appropriate standard.

The quality assurance of continuous assessment has been significantly improved with the

implementation of a prescribed framework (a comprehensive set of criteria and revised

approach), an increased sample size as well as the extended moderation which included

all eleven national subjects. Umalusi also conducted post analyses of question papers, and

the reports from this activity will be used to guide future moderation processes and

influence the question paper setting processes.

The seminar on standardisation conducted in November 2006 placed the spotlight on this

contentious, but necessary process. This matter will receive priority in the 2007/8 year with

the imminent challenge of standardising the results of the National Certificate Vocational

(NC(V)) at NQF Level 2 in 2007 and the National Senior Certificate (NSC) in 2008. Frameworks

to quality assure these new qualifications were also developed in 2006.

Umalusi remains concerned about the quality assurance of the CTA and this matter will be

investigated further in the new financial year.

Interesting facts

• 2,258 question papers were

moderated for schools, FET

colleges and Adult

Education Centres.

• Continuous Assessment

was moderated in all

national subjects in 11

assessment bodies.

• The Common Tasks of

Assessment (CTAs) were

moderated in 20 Learning

Areas.

Outcome Key performance Target Performance results

indicator

Quality

assurance of

assessment

maintained and

improved

Question papers of the

required standard.

Practical assessment

standardised.

Marking standardised.

Credible examinations.

Reliable assessment

outcomes.

Detailed analysis of question

papers and their

performance in the

examination.

Good quality internal

assessment.

Guidelines introduced for

internal assessment in the

Vocational Education and

Training (VET) sector.

System of quality assurance

for the NSC in place.

System of quality assurance

for the NC(V) in place

(including internal

assessment).

System of quality assurance

for practical assessment in

place.

Manual for external

moderators available.

Framework for training of

examination personnel in

place.

Subject reports with detailed

qualitative information on

question papers available

(incorporating views from

experts, examiners and

teachers).

Question papers for all

examinations: Grade 12, ABET

Level 4 and VET N1, N2 and N3

have been moderated.

CASS has been moderated.

Grade 12, ABET Level 4 and N1,

N2 and N3 examinations were

monitored.

Marking was moderated. Results

were standardised.

The quality assurance systems for

the NSC and NC(V) have been

developed.

A framework for moderation of

practical assessment has been

developed.

Teams of subject specialists

carried out the post examination

analysis of question papers.

Vijayen Naidoo
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Outcome Key performance Target Performance results

indicator

Continued

Quality

assurance of

assessment

maintained and

improved

Policy regulating

quality

assurance of

assessment

developed and

implemented

Standards for

assessment

articulated and

maintained

Monitoring,

review and

reporting

arrangements

on quality of

assessment in

the GFET band

in place

Stakeholder

relations

established and

managed

CASS was moderated in October

2006.

Guidelines for internal assessment

were developed.

A consolidated document on

Umalusi’s quality assurance of

assessment processes has been

developed.

A process for the review of the

standardisation policy has

commenced.

A process of analysing

assessment guidelines is

underway.

A report was submitted to the

Minister of Education on 2006

Examinations in December 2006.

The CTA moderation report was

sent to relevant authorities.

Regular communication

maintained with stakeholders was

through workshops, letters,

circulars and through attending

relevant meetings.

Document on the new

standardisation policy

produced.

Document on directives for

moderation of practical

subjects produced.

Criteria for evaluating

assessment standards

established.

Annual monitoring, review

and reporting of the quality

and standard of assessment.

Core of stakeholders well

established.

New standardisation policy

developed and

implemented.

Directives for moderation of

practical subjects

developed.

Assessment standards

established and maintained.

Periodic reports distributed

to stakeholders such as

Umalusi Council, Minister of

Education, national

Department of Education,

provincial departments of

Education and private

assessment bodies.

Regular, effective

communication with

stakeholders.
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PROGRAMME B
Evaluation and accreditation

The Evaluation and Accreditation Unit continued to provisionally accredit independent schools,

private FET colleges and AET centres. By the end of March 2007, 1,215 private provider

sites had been provisionally accredited across the three sectors.

Providers who had been provisionally accredited by Umalusi were monitored once again

during June/July 2006. This entailed the evaluation of about 1,000 monitoring reports across

the three sectors. This was followed up with provider workshops across provinces during

September 2006 (five provincial workshops for schools; three workshops for FET colleges

and AET centres).

The first site visits to independent schools were conducted in 2006. Poorly

performing schools were targeted in the first round and benchmarked against

schools that achieved good results. In total, 87 schools were visited with the purpose

of increasing Umalusi’s presence in the FET band, extending provisional

accreditation to schools that were outside the quality assurance loop, and verifying

information supplied by provisionally accredited schools.

The unit commenced with the processing of recommendations to the Department

of Education (DoE) for the registration of private FET colleges, impacting on about

500 private FET colleges. This has entailed articulating processes and negotiating the

status of SETA-accredited providers.

All existing assessment bodies (nine provincial departments and two private assessment

bodies – IEB and BCVO) were monitored against their improvement plans. The IEB’s

accreditation was extended to include assessment of the GETC: Adults. The Onafhanklike

Afrikaanse Eksamenraad (previously BCVO) was provisionally accredited to assess the

senior certificate. Three new assessment bodies made submissions to Umalusi and are in

the process of applying for accreditation.

Regular contact was maintained with the DoE, provincial departments, SAQA, SETAs and

provider associations to ensure that the unit was positioned to inform its constituency.

While 2006 saw the beginning of site visits, 2007 will see the large-scale extension of site

visits across sectors. The unit will also begin to engage with provincial departments on the

monitoring of quality assurance in public provision.

Some of the schools visited

by Umalusi during the

accreditation verification

process

Eugenie Rabe
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Outcome Key performance Target Performance results

indicator

Accreditation

and monitoring

system for

providers of

education and

training

established and

implemented

Accreditation

and monitoring

system for

examination

bodies

maintained and

extended

Administration

system

extended and

maintained

Institutional provisional

accreditation requirements

and documents revised to

include qualifications and

programmes.

Revised processes

implemented in articulation

with registration processes.

Providers monitored annually

and reported on.

Annual provider workshops

held.

Site visits to poorly

performing schools

completed and reported on.

Policy documents revised

and submitted to Minister for

approval and gazetted.

New examining bodies

screened, evaluated and

monitored.

Preparations completed for

next evaluations.

Existing examination

systems monitored against

improvement plans.

Strategy for establishment

and quality assurance of VET

and AET exam bodies

developed and reported on.

Examination bodies

developed and supported

through monitoring and

workshops.

Policy documents revised and

approved and gazetted.

Support documentation

developed and

implemented.

Existing processes

maintained.

Administrative procedures

identified and developed as

processes are implemented.

Revision and development

completed, August 2006.

Revised processes

implemented, September

2006.

Monitoring completed, July

2006.

Conducted provincially,

September 2006.

Site visits to independent

schools completed and

reported on, February 2007.

Policy documents re-

submitted for approval,

December 2006.

New exam bodies screened,

evaluated and monitored as

required.

IEB evaluated, April 2006;

BCVO, September 2006.

Monitoring completed, end

July 2006.

Strategy completed, October

2006.

Support provided on an

ongoing basis and best

practice workshop

conducted, May 2006.

Policy revised and submitted

for approval, September

2006.

Support documents

developed and implemented,

March 2007.

Efficient unit administration

system in place, improved

and maintained on an

ongoing basis.

Provisional accreditation

documents for qualifications and

curriculum have been finalised.

Revised processes have been

implemented.

Commenced with processing of

216 SETA/Accredited FET

providers for registration.

Monitoring reports were

processed and reported on.

Conducted national provider

workshops for all sectors.

Site visits to 87 schools have been

completed and a consolidated

report published.

All policy documents relating to

the accreditation of providers were

submitted to the Minister for

approval.

Four new applicants were

screened and are in the process

of applying for accreditation.

The IEB and BCVO were

provisionally accredited.

A monitoring report for the existing

systems was submitted to the

August 2007 Council meeting.

A draft report was written and the

recommendations taken up in

internal directives.

Three new agencies were

supported in the development of

their proposals for accreditation.

A best practice workshop was

conducted for all existing

assessment bodies.

The policy relating to accreditation

and monitoring of assessment

bodies was resubmitted.

Internal accreditation processes

have been mapped and

application documentation has

been partially developed.

New systems have been

developed for SETA-accredited

providers; the existing system has

been audited and improved; an

electronic records and tracking

system has been created for

 Continued
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Outcome Key performance Target Performance results

indicator

Continued

Administration

system extended

and maintained

Stakeholder

relationships

developed,

managed and

maintained

Unit governance

structure

maintained

Provider support ongoing.

Ongoing development, March

2007 completed.

Annual provider monitoring

workshops, September 2006.

Regular consultations took

place throughout the

year;quarterly meeting with

provider bodies.

Monthly DoE meetings with

FET Directorate.

Meetings held as required.

Ongoing provider support

provided.

MIS development continued

and improved.

Unit QMS maintained and

extended.

Annual provider workshops

conducted.

Meetings with provider bodies

(NAISA, FET principals,

APPETD etc) held.

Consultations with all relevant

stakeholders as the

evaluation and accreditation

system unfolds.

New Evaluation and

Accreditation Advisory

Group, established and

meetings conducted.

providers; an archiving system has been

established for portfolios; the database

was ’cleaned‘ through a provider

‘information update’ exercise. The public

website is correct and accurate.

There is ongoing communication and

support to providers.

MIS is continually being upgraded with

changing unit requirements.

A unit policy manual has been

developed and implemented.

Workshops were conducted

provincially.

Quarterly meetings were held with

NAISA.

A national meeting was held with private

FET colleges.

Ongoing one-on-one meetings are

held with providers.

Meetings are held with City and Guilds

and ICSA.

The new Advisory Group was inducted

in November 2006.

UMALUSI Annual Report 2006/2007

           18



PROGRAMME C
Qualifications, curriculum and certification

The quality assurance of standards for curriculum and qualifications is a newly established

function at Umalusi. The Qualifications, Curriculum and Certification Unit quality assures

standards for qualifications and curriculum in the GET and FET bands and ensures issuing

of certificates. The unit also offers a verification service for confirming the authenticity of

the certificates it issues.

The focus of this sub-unit in 2006 was on conceptualising and developing an appropriate

framework and systems for evaluation and approval of curricula and accreditation of

qualifications. Stakeholders across relevant sectors have been broadly consulted on the

framework.

Umalusi’s certification directives for the new vocational qualification (NC(V)) have been

developed and consultation was carried out with stakeholders. While the current

certification  IT system continues to be maintained and improved, it will be expanded to

accommodate the requirements of the NC(V). The demand for the certificate verification

service has increased exponentially from public and private organisations alike, but the

unit has kept pace with the demand.

Umalusi issues certificates of learner achievements through accredited assessment bodies

for approved curricula and accredited qualifications delivered by accredited providers. In

2006/7, Umalusi awarded 922,702 certificates.

The unit has planned a series of quality improvement workshops in 2007 for both

assessment bodies and expert curriculum evaluators focused on certification and

curriculum. The year 2007/8 will be one in which the unit will evaluate a selection of

curricula across the vocational, schooling and ABET sectors for both private and public

assessment bodies. This initial process will provide feedback for refining the set criteria to

evaluate curricula and recommendations for improving the curriculum statements. A

focused research project will be implemented to develop a quality assurance framework

for curriculum and assessment of practical subjects.

The NC(V) Level 2 will be launched and the certification systems for the new national

schooling certificate (NC(S)) will be developed in preparation for 2008. The verification

function will continue to be improved to render satisfactory service. The Qualifications,

Curriculum and Certification Unit will ensure that learners across the GET and FET sectors

are awarded credible certificates for quality achievement standards.

Outcome Key performance Target Performance results

indicator

Umalusi’s

approach to

monitoring the

standards of

qualifications

and curriculum

established

A framework document,

integrating the work of

different Umalusi units and

outlining Umalusi’s approach

to qualifications and

curriculum in place.

Criteria for evaluating

curriculum and qualifications

and addressing issues of

cognitive challenge in place.

A framework document has been

completed and sent for comment.

Draft criteria and guidelines (including

assessment and certification) have

been developed for the evaluation of

qualifications.

A research project for framework for

practical subject qualifications and

assessments has been proposed.

Revised approach to

qualifications and curriculum in

place.

Criteria for evaluating curricula

and qualifications, addressing

amongst other issues

cognitive challenge,

developed, July 2006.

Guidelines in place for the

assessment and certification

of qualifications.

Continued

Sindy Mafanga-Kibi
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Outcome Key performance Target Performance results

indicator

Continued

Umalusi’s

approach to

monitoring the

standards of

qualifications

and curriculum

established

Qualifications

and

programmes

accredited

Certification of

learner

achievements

ensured

Guidelines for assessment

and certification of

qualifications developed.

Reference groups or panels

for specific qualifications and

curriculum evaluation

established.

Other quality assurance

bodies/Umalusi structures

formed in key qualifications

areas.

Accreditation of

Qualifications Committee in

place.

A well organised system and

guidelines for submission of

qualifications and

programmes for evaluation for

accreditation purposes

established.

A database of subject

experts/specialists

established.

Ensure learner certification

processes, maintained and

improved.

Ensure processing of

verifications.

Periodic meetings take place

with SITA and the DoE to

assess the performance of

the system and other related

issues.

A new certification system

for the NQF 2 and 3

qualifications established.

An evaluation and accreditation advisory

group has been established and has

started its work.

Agreement on the approach to the

implementation of the evaluation and

accreditation process for qualifications

and curricula continue to be formalised

through internal dialogue.

An internal qualification panel has been

established.

Alignment of activities of QCC & E&A units

continue to take place.

The conceptual nature of the evaluation

panels has been determined. Evaluators

for the pilot subjects have been identified.

A database of subject (LA) experts,

qualifications and programmes has

being conceptualised as part of the

broader MIS plan for Umalusi.

The issuing of certificates was effectively

managed. A SLA has been signed with

SITA regarding the improvement of

learner certification processes.

An Internal Certification Advisory Forum

has been formally established to advise

and support on certification policies and

processes.

Marketing brochures on certification and

verification services were developed.

Letters on certification and verification

services offered by Umalusi were sent to

university registrars.

Directives and guidelines for the new

certification were developed and

communicated.

The contents and format of new NC(V)

certificates and samples have been

drafted.

Two additional posts to strengthen the

verification team were filled.

The link between Umalusi, SITA and DoE

regarding certification of the NSC and

NC(V) have been addressed.

Guideline document on joint

quality assurance of workplace

qualifications developed.

Guidelines for submitting

qualifications and

programmes for institutional

accreditation purposes

established.

Clearly demarcated subject

specialist panel structures

established.

Learner certification processes

improved.

Link between Umalusi, SITA

and DoE regarding

certification of the NSC and

FETC (Vocational) established.

Up-to-date certification system

that can deal with current

demands in place.

Directives for certification

circulated.
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PROGRAMME D
Research and development

The Research and Development Unit had a busy year and has initiated a variety of new

research projects. A research report Apples and Oranges: a comparison of school and college

subjects, discussed findings of research comparing the standards of similar subjects offered

in both colleges and schools. The research found that, based on the amount of knowledge

to be learned and the level of cognitive challenge at which it is examined in the courses, the

college courses needed improvement. It further found that the unit standards-based courses

could not be evaluated. The report was presented at a public seminar held at the Johannesburg

FET college. The seminar was well attended by college lecturers, researchers, and other role-

players in education and training.

In June 2006, Umalusi was proud to host the Fourth Annual Sub-Regional Assessment

Conference. The conference was held at the University of Johannesburg School of

Hospitality and Tourism and was organised around the theme of ‘Assessment and

Educational Standards’. The conference was attended by delegates from examinations

and qualifications authorities from nearly all of the SADC states, as well as by researchers

and educators from South Africa. Papers were presented by delegates from examinations’

councils, universities, non-governmental organisations, and government departments

from across the region. It is clear that in all countries in the sub-region there is ongoing

public debate about educational standards being too high or too low. Assessment and

quality assurance bodies all have to deal with criticism from the public when pass marks

go up or down. What is meant by standards, how they are determined, who plays a role

in determining them, and what the role of assessment is, were also critical questions.

Particularly heated debate was reserved for the new standards-based educational reform

movement, and outcomes-based education, as well as the question of indigenous

knowledge versus international standards.

The unit was engaged with two large research projects, one into the standard of courses

offered for the compulsory ‘fundamental’ component of qualifications, and one comparing

the syllabuses and examinations of South Africa’s Senior Certificate with equivalent

qualifications in Ghana, Kenya and Zambia. Reports from both these research projects will be

published in the new financial year.

Outcome Key performance Target Performance results

indicator

Research is

planned,

implemented,

and managed,

and research

findings are

utilised

African benchmarking research is almost

finalised.

Statistical research projects were

implemented, but were not successfully

completed.

CASS research and research into the

fundamentals is underway.

A vocational standards research

proposal was developed and submitted.

Analysis of examination scripts with the

University of Johannesburg is underway.

Research into NQF Level 5 project was

planned and a proposal was developed.

Tools for evaluating curricula

and examinations developed.

Insight into standards of

various examinations improved.

Insight into how to improve

systems and processes

obtained.

Research projects are

commissioned or conducted.

Research findings and

reports are used in

appropriate structures of the

organisation.

Continued

Matseleng Allais
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Outcome Key performance Target Performance results

indicator

Research forum

maintained

Strategic

support is

provided to the

organisation

Stakeholders

are engaged

Resource centre

maintained

A new Research Forum was appointed

and met in 2006.

Website was monitored and updated.

Staff capacity building continued.

Units were given assistance in publishing

documents and reports.

Support was provided to the QCC unit in

different strategic activities.

The Fourth Sub-Regional Assessment

Conference was convened.

Papers from the Sub-Regional

Assessment Conference were published

and distributed.

The best papers were sent to peer

reviewers for publication in South African

Review of Education with Education with

Production.

Planning for the Commonwealth 2008

Quality Assurance Conference has

commenced.

The resource centre continued to grow.

Staff have used the resource centre.

New library software has been

implemented.

Guidance and advice provided

by leading experts and

professionals.

Documents produced.

Conference/seminar

proceedings and papers

produced.

Templates, documents,

systems established.

New website launched.

Capacity building for staff on

broad educational issues.

Public conferences and

seminars organised.

Umalusi’s presence in the

educational area is maintained

and strengthened.

Debates are facilitated

amongst key role-players and

stakeholders with whom

Umalusi works.

New resources acquired.

Organisation of resources

improved.

Minutes of meetings show

implementation.

Organisation disseminates

professional work through

published documents and a

professional website.

Conference proceedings.

Media coverage.

Resource centre caters for

staff needs.

Staff utilise the resource

centre.

Important literature is

accumulated and organised.

New library software

purchased.

The Fourth Sub-Regional

Assessment Conference, June 2006

UMALUSI Annual Report 2006/2007

RESEARCH AND PUBLICATION HIGHLIGHTS

Apples and Oranges? A comparison of school and college subjects.

Cognitive Challenge: Umalusi’s role in monitoring standards of qualifications and

curricula. Report of an Umalusi Workshop.

4th Sub-Regional Conference on Assessment in Education. Conference

proceedings.

The Research and Development Unit is currently busy with two large research

projects, one examining the standard of courses offered for the compulsory

‘fundamental’ component of qualifications; and another comparing the syllabuses

and examinations of South Africa’s Senior Certificate with equivalent qualifications

in Ghana, Kenya, and Zambia. Reports from both these research projects will be

available in the new financial year.
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PROGRAMME E
Management support structures and governance

The Management Support Structures Unit ensured that a strategic plan was in place and that

the organisation fulfilled its mandate. The unit supported the work of Council and ensured

that the Council was kept up-to-date and was able to do its work. The unit assisted with the

establishment of the new Council and ensured that Council members were appropriately

inducted.

During the financial year, the unit oversaw the implementation of a customer satisfaction

survey: 457 telephone interviews were conducted in June and July 2006 and included identified

Umalusi constituent members, stakeholders and/or customers. Overall, the results from the

survey were good in terms of positive results from the statements given. However, these

results were overshadowed by some negative comments made on other process areas and

systems. Processes were put into place to address these shortcomings.

Key ideas arising from the Customer Satisfaction Survey

Although the survey results generally reflect positively on the quality of Umalusi’s interaction

with its clients, nevertheless, there is room for improvement in all areas of customer contact

and service – the only areas that achieved a positive result, above 70%, were respecting

customers, and playing a key role in improving education quality in South Africa.

Customers appear to be fairly satisfied with the manner in which they are treated by the

staff at Umalusi; however there are other particular process areas that are creating a

sense of dissatisfaction and require addressing. These include:

• Communication (including general feedback)

• Marketing and public awareness

• Accreditation processes and requirements

• Certification issues

• Switchboard and reaching the right person

• Dealing with complaints and solving problems.

The first Umalusi Annual General Meeting was organised in September 2006, and in October

2006 a dinner briefing was organised for the Parliamentary Education and Labour Portfolio

Committees.

Four copies of the newsletter Makoya were produced during the year. New brochures,

banners and other promotional material were produced and the booklet Umalusi: A

Historical Perspective was also published.

Outcome Key performance Target Performance results

indicator

Organisational

planning and

implementation

and review of

plans

New management planning cycle and

calendar was implemented.

Strategic and business planning was

carried out.

Managerial and organisational reports

were co-ordinated.

PFMA and other targets met.

Effective quality assurance

procedures in place.

Umalusi responsive to

customer needs.

Continued

New cycle and calendar

drawn up, presented and

updated.

Co-ordinated plans made

available to management.

Reports available for

managerial decisions.

Peliwe Lolwana
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Prof Edith Dempster

at the Fourth

Sub-Regional

Assessment Conference

Outcome Key performance Target Performance results

indicator

Continued

Organisational

planning and

implementation

and review of

plans

CEO, Council

and committees

supported

Implementing

public relations

programme

Quality assurance processes were

reviewed in the light of the 4 December

2006 discussion.

New Council was briefed and orientated.

Council and committees were

supported.

Administrative services were rendered.

A communications strategy was

developed.

Regular media briefings were sent out.

The Annual General Meeting was held on

18 September 2006 in Pretoria.

A dinner function was held in Cape Town

with the Labour and Education

Parliament Portfolio Committees on 19

October 2006.

Four newsletters were published.

Umalusi: A Historical Perspective was

published.

A communications strategy was developed

for the end of year examination process.

Media issues around the end of year

examinations were managed.

Media queries were responded to.

Reports presented to external

institutions as required.

Organisational policies vetted

before council approval and

implementation.

Managerial review takes place

regularly.

Networking with stakeholders.

Database utilised.

CEO programmes adhered to.

Council programmes adhered

to.

Commitments kept.

Enhanced participation in

public debate.

Texts prepared and published.

Umalusi enjoys more news

media exposure.

Relevant information reaches

stakeholders.

Management successfully

communicates with staff.

Corporate identity

strengthened.

Contacts established and

developed.

Effective editing processes in

place.

Improved liaison with other

education and training

communicators.

Effective organisational

governance.

Umalusi well profiled in the

media.

The Umalusi ‘brand’ is

recognised.
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Jeremy Thomas

Finance and administration

The Finance and Administration Unit has ensured the effective, efficient and economical

utilisation of all organisational resources. Once again it offered centralised support to the

organisation by prioritising:

• The latest technological infrastructure (Programme F) has been put into place to

support the work of the organisation ensuring the system meets the needs of the

organisation and processes are continuously improved.

• Financial management (Programme G1), through the establishment of a credible

accounting system, which is monitored by the Audit Committee of Council as well

as through regular reporting to Exco and the full Council. The finance function also

includes the management of assets and facility management.

• Human resource management (Programme G2) which is overseen by the OCEO and

Exco, placed more emphasis on human resource training and development.

Outcome Key performance Target Performance results

indicator

IT systems

established,

maintained and

improved

Certification

process

effectively

supported

Adequate

computer

hardware and

software in

place to support

operations

Progress on improving the MIS was slow

since new requests with high priorities are

addressed between the scheduled tasks.

Offline workflow is being improved with

the help of an outside provider.

The new Umalusi website is fully

operational.

The certification system is being

maintained.

The SAQA NLRD project is currently in

the process of being transferred to the

DoE since it agreed to provide the required

data to SAQA.

Equipment has been procured and

installed as required.

Software licenses have been managed

as required.

Service Level Agreements with designated

providers were effectively managed.

Network support met expectations.

IT systems established,

maintained and improved.

Certification process

effectively maintained and

improved.

Computer hardware and

software effectively procured.

MIS functions well.

Website maintained according

to requests received from end

users.

Effective certification process

ensured.

Project with SAQA to extract

and load all certification data on

the NLRD completed.

Certification system maintained

according to requests received

from users.

Participion in IT steering

committee for the new FETC

system undertaken.

Interim system to print NC(V)

certificates developed and

implemented.

Computer equipment

procured when necessary.

PROGRAMME F
Information technology systems
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Outcome Key performance Target Performance results

indicator

Finance and

accounting

systems

maintained and

improved

Payments made

for goods and

services

Building and

security

systems

maintained and

improved

Internal and external audits were

completed.

Final Audited Financial Statements were

submitted to Treasury.

Investments were made in line with

prescribed policy, at the best rates.

Assets were labelled and counted twice

during the year.

Creditors were paid within 30 days.

Modifications were made on an ad hoc

basis to meet changing requirements.

Security was enhanced through the

erection of palisade fencing.

Policy Implemented in terms of

PFMA and various committees’

requirements.

Audit requirements met.

Debts collected.

Investments wisely managed.

Assets carefully managed.

Creditors paid on time.

Organisation adequately

resourced.

Preventive maintenance

programme implemented.

Accounting system in line with

PFMA maintained and

improved.

Financial resources well

managed.

Buildings and security

systems managed against the

budget and management

requirements.

Outcome Key performance Target Performance results

indicator

Human

resources (HR)

managed

Staff

performance

monitored and

staff

development

processes in

place

General services

provided

A revised HR policy and procedure

document was completed.

An employee assistance programme

was successfully implemented through

ICAS.

One-hour training was provided bi-

weekly to the administration cadre.

Staff participated in English writing

courses.

Staff participated in African language

training programmes.

All staff participated in workplace

emotional intelligence training.

Reception, telephone and cleaning

services maintained.

Effective telephone links have now been

established.

HR policies in terms of labour

legislation to ensure good

labour practices and staff

development implemented.

Effective human resource

management practices in

place.

Suitably trained and motivated

staff.

Reception services provided in

line with policy.

Building well maintained.

Human resource policies and

procedures implemented and

improved.

Staff performance managed.

Staff development strategies

in place.

Reception, telephone and

cleaning services maintained

and improved.

PROGRAMME G2
Human resource management and development
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Report of the Audit Committee
for the year ended 31 March 2007

The Audit Committee consists of the members listed on page 10 and meets at least twice a year in terms of the Public

Finance Management Act of 1999. During the 2006/2007 financial year under review, three meetings were held.

The first meeting of the financial year under review was on 28 June 2006, followed by meetings on 23 November 2006 and

14 February 2007. The Committee continued with its mandate, executing an oversight role over risk management, internal

audit and financial reporting. It confirms that, in accordance with its formal terms of reference and the requirements of

the Treasury Regulations, it has reviewed:

• the effectiveness of internal control;

• the effectiveness of the internal audit function;

• the risk management processes of Umalusi;

• the risk areas of Umalusi’s operations covered in the scope of internal and external audits;

• the adequacy, reliability and accuracy of the financial information provided to management and other users of

such information;

• accounting and auditing concerns identified as a result of internal and external audits;

• Umalusi’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;

• the quality of Umalusi’s management and monthly and quarterly reports;

• the activities of the internal audit function, including its annual work programme, co-ordination with the

external auditors, the reports of significant investigations and the responses of management to specific

recommendations; and

• the contents of the annual financial statements.

The Audit Committee reviewed the internal and external audit reports. Based on these, it is clear that the work of evaluating

and accrediting providers has placed increased responsibilty and accountability on the organisation structures to ensure

effectiveness and efficiency. Following the reviews of the Committee, we are confident that the stipulations of the relevant

provisions of the Public Finance Management Act of 1999, as amended, and Treasury Regulations have been complied

with to a satisfactory extent.

I would like to express my appreciation to the members of the Audit Committee who played a valuable role in advising and

guiding Umalusi’s management.

MMMMMSSSSS T  K T  K T  K T  K T  KENTENTENTENTENTANEANEANEANEANE

27th June 2007
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The reports and statements set out below comprise the annual financial statements presented to the members:
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Report of the Independent Auditors 29

Report of the Council 30-31

Statement of Financial Position 32

Statement of Financial Performance 32

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 33

Cash Flow Statement 33

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 34–39

The following supplementary schedules do not form part of the financial statements, and are unaudited:

Detailed Income Statement 40

Approval

The financial statements which appear on pages 30 to 40 were approved by Umalusi’s Executive Committee of Council

on 26 July 2006 and signed on its behalf by:

JJJJJOHNOHNOHNOHNOHN V V V V VOLMINKOLMINKOLMINKOLMINKOLMINK

Chairperson: Umalusi Council

JJJJJEREMYEREMYEREMYEREMYEREMY T T T T THOMASHOMASHOMASHOMASHOMAS

Acting Chief Executive Officer: Umalusi
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We have audited the annual financial statements of Umalusi, Council for Quality Assurance in General and Further

Education and Training, which comprise the Council report, the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2007,

the statement of financial performance, the statement of changes in net assets and cash flow statement for the

year then ended, a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 30

to 39.

Council’s responsibility for the financial statements
The entity’s Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance

with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP), with the effective Standards of

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) issued by the Accounting Standards Board replacing the equivalent

GAAP statement and in the manner required by the Public Finance Management Act, 1 of 1999 (PFMA). This

responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and

fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;

selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit

in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk

assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the

financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating

the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the  reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,

as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the entity as at

31 March 2007, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the

basis of accounting as described in note 1.1 and in the manner required by the PFMA.

Emphasis of matter
Without qualifying our opinion above, we draw attention to the disclosures of the PFMA internal control weaknesses

and performance information made on page 6 of the Council report (see page 30, point 7).

GOBODO INC

Registered Auditors
Elton Bosch
Partner
30 July 2007

Pretoria
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The Council presents its report for the year ended 31 March 2006. This report forms part of the audited financial

statements.

1. Principal activities of the company

Umalusi, Council for Quality Assurance in General and Further Education and Training, is the quality assurer in the

general and further education and training bands of the National Qualifications Framework (NQF). The Council

ensures that the providers of education and training have the capacity to deliver and assess qualifications and

learning programmes and do so to expected standards of quality.

2. Incorporation

Umalusi is listed as a national public entity in schedule 3A of the Public Finance Management Act, 1 of 1999, as

amended.

3. General review

The entity’s business and operations and the results thereof are clearly reflected in the attached financial

statements.

4. Statements of responsibility

The Council for Quality Assurance in General and Further Education and Training is responsible for the maintenance

of adequate accounting records and the preparation and integrity of the financial statements and related

information. The auditors are responsible to report on the fair presentation of the financial statements. The

financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP),

supplemented by Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) (refer to Note 1 to the financial statements) and

in the manner required by relevant Acts.

The Council is also responsible for the entity’s system of internal financial control. These are designed to provide

reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the reliability of the financial statements, and to adequately

safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of assets, and to prevent and detect misstatement and loss. Nothing

has come to the attention of the Council to indicate that any material breakdown in the functioning of these

controls, procedures and systems has occurred during the year under review.

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, since the Council has every reason to

believe that the entity has adequate resources in place to continue its operation for the foreseeable future.

5. Financial results

The results of the entity and the state of its affairs are set out in the attached financial statements.

6. Property, plant and equipment

There have been no major changes in the fixed assets during the period or any changes in the policy relating to

their use.

7. Internal control

In accordance with the PFMA, the Council is accountable for internal control. The Council has the responsibility

for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of Umalusi’s objectives and

for reviewing its effectiveness. The system of internal control is designed to manage, rather than eliminate the

risk of failure to achieve these objectives; it can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of

effectiveness.

The system of internal control is based on an ongoing risk management process designed to identify the principal

risk to the achievement of the organisation’s objectives; to evaluate the nature and extent of those risks and to

manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control is underpinned by

compliance with the relevant corporate and governance legislation.

Report of the Council
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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Whilst the Council is encouraged by the significant improvements undertaken by management in implementing

sound financial management practices and good corporate governance, the internal control weaknesses in the

following areas came to the Council’s attention during the current financial year:

• asset management

• revenue management; and

• reporting on performance information.

As a result of the onerous obligations of the PFMA and the failure to fully comply with all the statutory prescripts

of the PFMA, Council wishes to highlight the substantial progress that has been made in redefining the foundation

for sound internal control within the entity and is committed to implementing improvements in key areas,

including the enhancement of asset and revenue management process as well as the quality of predetermined

objectives established in the strategic plan.

8. Subsequent events

There have been no facts or circumstances of a material nature that have occurred between the accounting date

and the date of this report.

9. Council members

The Council of the entity during the accounting period and up to the date of this report were as follows:

10. Secretary

The secretary of the entity is Mr EP du Plooy.

37 General van Ryneveld Street Postnet Suite 102

Persequor Technopark Private Bag X 1

Pretoria Queenswood

11. Auditors

Gobodo Incorporated were appointed as auditors with effect 1 April 2005.

Prof JD Volmink (Chairperson)

Mr J Pampallis (Deputy Chairperson)

Mr GR Agocs

Prof L Chisholm

Prof M Fourie

Dr PP Lolwana

Prof SG Mabizela

Dr MA Makhafola

Ms J Naidoo

Mr L Nengovhela

Dr RA Patel

Mr MS Rakometsi

Dr IL Rensburg

Dr PJN Steyn

Dr ZC Sosibo

Ms PT Tyobeka
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2007 2006

Notes R R

Gross revenue 9 30,475,184 26,717,194

Other income 770,616 579,085

Operating costs (28,024,522) (21,329,502)

Operating surplus 6 3,221,278 5,966,777

Investment income 8 1,726,545 1,307,700

Surplus 4,947,823 7,274,477

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 March 2007

2007 2006

Notes R R

ASSETS

Non-current assets 1,024,777 962,206

Property, plant and equipment 2 1,024,777 962,206

Current assets 30,023,187 24,708,282

Accounts receivable 3 9,365,500 7,192,332

Cash and cash equivalents 4 20,657,687 17,515,950

Total assets 31,047,964 25,670,488

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves

Accumulated surplus 28,926,808 23,978,985

Current liabilities 2,121,156 1,691,503

Accounts payable 1,216,197 903,889

Provisions 5 904,959 787,614

Total equity and liabilities 31,047,964 25,670,488

Statement of Financial Performance
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 March 2007

Accumulated

Surplus

R

Balance at 01 April 2004 11,547,915

Net surplus for the year 5,156,593

Balance at 01 April 2005 16,704,508

Net surplus for the year 7,274,477

Balance at 31 March 2006 23,978,985

Net surplus for the year 4,947,823

Balance at 31 March 2007 28,926,808

Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006

Notes R R

Cash flows from operating activities 3,696,764 953,565

Cash receipts from customers 29,072,632 20,869,266

Cash paid to suppliers and employees (27,102,413) (21,223,401)

Cash generated by/(utilised in) operating activities 15.1 1,970,219 (354,135)

Interest received 1,726,545 1,307,700

Cash flows from investing activities

Expenditure to maintain operating capacity

Property, plant and equipment acquired (555,027) (358,501)

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,141,737 595,064

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 17,515,950 16,920,886

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 15.2 20,657,687 17,515,950
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1 Accounting policies

1.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the South African

Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) including any

interpretations of such statements issued by the Accounting Standards Board, with the

effective Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) issued by

the Accounting Standards Board replacing the equivalent GAAP Statement as follows:

Standards of GRAP Replaced Statement of GAAP

GRAP 1: Presentation of financial statements AC101: Presentation of financial

statements

GRAP 2: Cash flow statements AC118: Cash flow statements

GRAP 3: Accounting policies, changes in AC103: Accounting policies, changes in

accounting estimates and errors accounting estimates and errors

Currently the recognition and measurement principles in the above GRAP and GAAP

Statements do not differ or result in material differences in items presented and

disclosed in the financial statements. The implementation of GRAP 1, 2 & 3 has

resulted in the following changes in the presentation of the financial statements:

a) Terminology difference:

Standards of GRAP Replaced Statement of GAAP

Statement of Financial Performance Income Statement

Statement of Financial Position Balance Sheet

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Statement of Changes in Equity

Net Assets Equity

Surplus/deficit Profit/loss

Accumulated surplus/deficit Retained earnings

b) The cash flow statement can only be prepared in accordance with the direct

method.

c)  There are no restrictions on cash balances.

Paragraph 11 – 15 of GRAP 1 has not been implemented because the budget

reporting standard is in the process of development by the international and local

standard setters. Although the inclusion of budget information would enhance the

usefulness of the financial statements, non-disclosure will not affect the objective of

the financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis and are prepared

under the historical costs convention.

1.2 Revenue recognition

Revenue in respect of certification, accreditation, verification and moderation is

recognised upon completion of the activity or replacement of certificates. Interest

income is accrued on a time proportion basis, taking into account the principal

outstanding and the effective interest rate over the period to maturity.

1.3 Property, plant and equipment

All fixed assets are initially recorded at cost.

Depreciation is based on cost and calculated on the straight-line method from the

day the assets become available for use, at rates considered appropriate to write off

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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carrying values over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The useful lives and

residual values are reviewed annually.

The estimated useful lives of the main categories of property, plant and equipment

are as follows:

Furniture and fittings 4-6 years

Computer software 2 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computer equipment 3 years

Communication equipment 5 years

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable

amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount (i.e. impairment

losses are recognised).

The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each class of asset are

reviewed annually.

The gains and losses on disposal of an asset are determined as the difference

between the proceeds on disposal of the asset at the date of disposal.

1.4 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a present legal obligation as a result of

past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic

benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount

of the obligation can be made.

Employee entitlements to annual leave and bonus payments are recognised when

they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual

leave and bonus payments as a result of services rendered by employees up to the

reporting date.

1.5 Financial instruments

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include cash and

bank balances, investments, trade and other receivables and trade and other

payables. Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value, which include

transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments are measured

at amortised cost.

1.6 Government grants

Grants related to income: Core funding is accounted for in the year of receipt.

Additional government/foreign assistance is recorded as deferred income when it

becomes receivable and is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the

period necessary to match the assistance with the related costs it is intended to

compensate.

1.7 Leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line

basis over the term of the relevant lease.

2. Property, plant and equipment p.36
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2. Property, plant and equipment

3. Trade and other receivables

2007 2006

Cost Accumulated Carrying Cost Accumulated Carrying

depreciation value depreciation value

Owned assets

Furniture and fittings 1,226,480 762,500 463,980 1,099,680 585,721 513,959

Computer software 905,702 862,585 43,117 840,215 803,743 36,472

Office equipment 330,981 190,178 140,803 203,488 159,896 43,592

Computer equipment 1,603,781 1,254,813 348,968 1,368,533 1,039,811 328,722

Communication equipment 157,375 129,465 27,910 157,375 117,914 39,461

4,224,319 3,199,541 1,024,778 3,669,291 2,707,085 962,206

The carrying amounts of fixed assets can be reconciled as follows:

Carrying value Carrying

at beginning value at end

2007 of year Additions Disposal Depreciation of year

Owned assets

Furniture and fittings 513,959 126,800 - (176,779) 463,980

Computer software 36,473 65,486 - (58,842) 43,117

Office equipment 43,591 127,493 - (30,281) 140,803

Computer equipment 328,723 235,248 - (215,003) 348,968

Communication equipment 39,460 - - (11,550) 27,910

962,206 555,027 - (492,455) 1,024,778

Carrying value Carrying

at beginning value at end

2006 of year Additions Disposal Depreciation of year

Owned assets

Furniture and fittings 443,660 206,938 - (136,639) 513,959

Computer software 311,781 33,772 - (309,081) 36,472

Office equipment 50,183 6,928 - (13,519) 43,592

Computer equipment 467,824 74,774 (9,828) (204,048) 328,722

Communication equipment 5,066 45,594 - (11,199) 39,461

1,278,514 368,006 (9,828) (674,486) 962,206

No adjustments have been made following the review of residual values and useful lives as the effect thereof is considered

immaterial.

2007 2006

R R

Trade and other receivables is made up of the following:

Trade receivables 8,891,686 6,547,030

Less: Provision for impairment of receivables (19,278) (19,278)

8,872,408 6,527,752

Other receivables 493,092 664,580

9,365,500 7,192,332

The provision for impairment of receivables has been determined by means of an analysis of the

recoverability of individual debtors accounts.
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4. Cash and short term deposits

5. Provisions

6. Operating surplus

7. Council members’ and senior management’s emoluments

2007 2006

R R

Cash and short term deposits is made up of the following:

Cash at banks and in hand 299,580 1,446,710

Short term deposits 20,358,107 16,069,240

20,657,687 17,515,950

Carrying amount Unused amounts Carrying

at beginning Additional reversed during amount at

of year provision the year end of year

R R R R

Leave pay benefits 302,729 45,078 - 347,807

Bonus 484,885 72,267 - 557,152

787,614 117,345 - 904,959

2007 2006

R R

Operating surplus is stated after:

Expenditure

Auditors’ remuneration

– Audit fees 209,760 85,500

Depreciation

– Property, plant and equipment 492,455 674,486

Lease rentals

– Premises 1,471,415 1,291,303

Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 324

Council and senior management emoluments (note 7) 3,720,229 2,952,004

Research and development 1,490,950 265,965

2007 2006

R R

Council emoluments 50,111 17,855

Senior management’s emoluments 3,670,118 2,934,149

3,720,229 2,952,004

Council emoluments

Emoluments received as Council members

Volmink JD 47,483 -

Naidoo J 2,628 -

Pampallis J - 16,528

Masitara T - 1,327

50,111 17,855

7.  continued p.38
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7. Council members’ and senior management’s emoluments continued

8. Investment income

9. Gross revenue

2007 2006

R R

An analysis of the revenue is as follows:

Certification, verification, and accreditation fees 20,189,184 18,431,819

Income from USAID - 595,375

Allocation: Department of Education 10,286,000 7,690,000

30,475,184 26,717,194

10. Financial instruments

Fair value

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts

payable approximate to their fair value.

Interest rate risk

The entity adopts a policy of ensuring that its exposure to changes in interest rates is on

a combination of floating and fixed rate basis.

Credit risk

The entity maintains cash, cash equivalents and short term investments with various

financial institutions. The entity’s policy is designed to limit exposure with any one

financial institution and a high credit standing is necessary for the financial institutions

with which transactions are executed.

The entity has no significant concentrations of credit risk.

Senior management’s emoluments

Bonuses and

Management performance Pension 2007

details Salary payments contributions Total

Lolwana P 613,981 68,090 49,709 731,780

Potterton MQ 530,622 - 40,596 571,218

Allais SM 463,071 39,147 - 502,218

Mafanga-Kibi S 345,770 - - 345,770

Naidoo VD 114,130 - 8,877 123,007

Ndaba SJ 340,136 27,521 25,894 393,551

Rabe E 452,453 4,740 35,203 492,396

Thomas JR 440,715 34,038 35,425 510,178

Total 3,300,878 173,536 195,704 3,670,118

Bonuses and

Management performance Pension 2006

details Salary payments contributions Total

Lolwana P 575,553 71,250 44,921 691,724

Potterton MQ 86,570 - 6,700 93,270

Allais SM 432,129 20,958 - 453,087

Mthembu MA 294,803 10,060 - 304,863

Ndaba SJ 404,684 22,657 32,877 460,218

Rabe E 424,168 4,531 32,037 460,736

Thomas JR 409,285 27,596 33,370 470,251

Total 2,627,192 157,052 149,905 2,934,149

2007 2006

R R

Investment income

– Interest received 1,726,545 1,307,700
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11. Commitments

2007 2006

R R

Operating lease commitments

The future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Not later than one year 397,800 1,324,220

Later than one year and not later than 5 years 169,200 1,957,360

567,000 3,281,580

12. Related parties

Department of Education

The operating grant funding received from the Department of Education has been disclosed in

the Statement of Financial Performance as part of Gross Revenue. For more information refer to

note 9.

Councillors and senior management’s remuneration

For details on councillor’s and senior management’s remuneration, refer to note 7.

The nature of entity’s business is such that a majority of the transactions are incurred with

other government departments and institutions. These transactions were all conducted in an

arm’s length manner as part of normal operating activities.

13. Taxation

The Council has been given exemption from tax in terms of Section 10(1)(cA)(i)(bb) of the Income

Tax Act 58, of 1962.

14 Comparative figures

Where deemed necessary, comparative figures have been restated to correspond with the

reclassification of certain items.

15. Notes to the cash flow statement

2007 2006

R R

15.1 Cash generated by/(utilised in) operating activities

Net surplus/(deficit) 4,947,864 7,274,477

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 492,455 674,486

Interest received (1,726,545) (1,307,700)

Movement in provisions 117,345 (37,309)

Loss on disposals of fixed assets - 324

3,831,119 6,594,278

Movements in working capital:

(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable (2,173,168) (6,387,811)

Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable 312,308 (560,602)

1,970,259 (354,135)

15.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash

on hand and balances with banks. Cash

and cash equivalents included in the cash

flow statement comprise the following

balance sheet amounts:

Cash and cash equivalents 20,657,687 17,515,950
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Detailed Income Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2006

2007 2006

R R

Gross revenue 30,475,184 26,717,194

Certification, verification, accreditation and moderation fees 20,189,184 18,431,819
Income USAID - 595,375
Allocation: Department of Education 10,286,000 7,690,000

Other income 2,497,161 1,886,785

Interest received 1,726,545 1,307,700
Other income 770,616 150,085
Bad debts recovered - 429,000

Total income 32,972,345 28,603,979

Total expenditure (28,024,522) (21,329,502)

Surplus 4,947,823 7,274,477
Retained surplus at beginning of year 23,978,985 16,704,508

Retained surplus at end of year 28,926,808 23,978,985

Expenditure 28,024,522 21,329,502

Accreditation fees 8,250 456,717
Advertising & recruitment 216,849 138,772
Auditors’ remuneration 209,760 105,792
Bank charges 28,236 23,351
Certification expenses 2,810,504 2,244,294
Cleaning 101,902 120,659
Committee expenses 32,470 28,485
Computer expenses 645,129 462,049
Conferences & workshops 67,857 174,511
Consulting fees 685,970 179,343
Council members’ allowances and costs 155,706 140,345
Depreciation 492,454 674,486
Entertainment - 2,467
Gifts 1,285 630
Insurance 14,835 34,430
Lease rentals 1,539,659 1,291,303
Legal expenses 120,469 -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 324
Meeting expenses 162,012 12,616
Membership fees 9,316 -
Moderators’ and verifiers’ remuneration & costs 3,844,625 3,789,760
Postage & courier services 142,145 57,646
Printing and stationery 530,902 161,584
Promotions 138,814 153,231
RSC – levies 8,205 27,600
Repairs and maintenance 109,981 56,348
Research and development 368,994 265,965
Salaries 12,072,472 9,810,328
Security 13,109 4,879
Special investigations - 3,045
Standardisation 143,216 168,329
Sundry expenses 30,865 -
Telephone and fax 299,618 18,520
Training 269,933 303,677
Travel – local 2,706,961 44,693
Travel – overseas 42,019 373,323

This statement does not form part of the financial statements and is unaudited.
Where necessary, comparative figures have been restated to correspond with the reclassification of
certain items.
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TTTTTableableableableable
1.11.11.11.11.1

Programme Total Personnel Training Personnel Average

expenditure expenditure expenditure cost as a % personnel

 (R’000) (R’000) (R’000) of total cost per

expenditure employee

(R’000)

Management Support Structures 2,511 1,942 16 77% 486

Evaluation & Accreditation 3,572 2,439 14 68% 203

Quality Assurance of Assessment 8,927 2,983 16 33% 229

Qualifications, Curriculum

& Certification 1,988 1,042 28 52% 208

Research & Development 2,094 1,196 39 57% 399

Finance & Administration 9,094 2,471 27 27% 206

Total 28,186 12,073 140 43% 246

Oversight report

The statistics and information published in this part of the annual report are required in
terms of Chapter 1, Part III J.3 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001 and have been
prescribed by the Minister for the Public Services and Administration.

Information on key human resources issues are provided in the statistical tables. The
information aims to empower legislators, the media, the public and other stakeholders to
monitor whether public entities:
• exercise the powers granted under Public Service and Public Finance legislation in a

responsible manner,

• achieve national transformation priorities established by the Cabinet, (e.g.
affirmative action).

1. Expenditure

Umalusi budgets in terms of clearly defined programmes. The following tables summarise
expenditure programme (Table 1.1) and salary bands (Table 1.2) in particular. An indication
of the amount spent on personnel costs in terms of each of the programmes or salary
bands within Umalusi is provided.

These figures reflect the permanent employees  of Umalusi. An average of 200 employees,
who were appointed as moderators and monitors, are reflected as consultants, and were
remunerated on a claim-per-task basis.

Personnel cost by

programme 2006/2007
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TTTTTableableableableable
1.31.31.31.31.3

Salaries, overtime, home owners allowance, medical aid

assistance by programme 2006/2007

TTTTTableableableableable
1.21.21.21.21.2

Personnel cost by salary

bands 2006/2007

Programme Salaries Employer’s Home-owner’s Medical Aid

contribution to Allowance Assistance

Pension Fund

Amount As a % of Amount As a % of Amount As a % of Amount As a % of
(R’000) personnel (R’000) personnel cost (R’000) personnel cost (R’000)  personnel cost

cost
Management

Support Structures 1,780 92% 133 7% 8 0,4% 12 0,62%

Evaluation &

Accreditation 2,165 89% 196 8% 29 1,19% 40 1,64%

Quality Assurance

 of Assessment 2,676 90% 205 7% 32 1,07% 61 2,04%

Qualifications

Curriculum &

Certification 991 95% 42 4% - - - -

Research &

Development 1,144 96% 43 4% - - - -

Finance &

Administration  2,228 90% 183 7% 17 0,68% 34 1,38%

Total 10,984 91% 802 7% 86 0,71% 147 1,21%

The following tables provide a summary by programme (Table 1.3) and salary bands (Table 1.4)
of expenditure incurred as a result of the payment of salaries, employer’s contribution to
Pension Fund, home-owner’s allowance and medical allowance. The table provides an
indication of the percentage of the personnel budget that was used for these items.

Salary bands Personnel % of total Average personnel

expenditure personnel cost per employee

(R’000) cost (R’000)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 66 1% 66

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 1,200 10% 86

High skilled production (Levels 6-8) 1,010 8% 168

High skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 6,022 50% 274

Senior Management (Levels 13-16) 3,775 31% 629

Total 12,073 100% 246
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TTTTTableableableableable
2.22.22.22.22.2

Employment and vacancies by salary bands

31 March 2007

TTTTTableableableableable
2.12.12.12.12.1

Employment and vacancies by programme

31 March 2007

TTTTTableableableableable
1.41.41.41.41.4

Salaries, overtime, home owners allowance, medical aid

assistance by salary bands 2006/2007

2. Employment and vacancies

The following tables summarise the number of posts on the establishment, the number
of employees, the vacancy rate, and whether there are any staff additional to the
establishment. This information is presented in terms of three key variables: programme
(Table 2.1), salary bands (Table 2.2) and critical occupations (Table 2.3). Table 2.3 provides
establishment and vacancy information for the key critical occupations in Umalusi. The
vacancy rate reflects the percentage of posts that are not filled.

Programme Salaries Employer’s Home-owner’s Medical Aid

contribution to Allowance Assistance

Pension Fund

Salary bands Amount Salary Amount As a % of Amount As a % of Amount As a % of
(R’000) as a % of (R’000) personnel cost (R’000) personnel (R’000)  personnel

personnel cost cost
cost

Lower skilled

(Levels 1-2) 60 91% 4 6% - - 1 1,5%

Skilled

(Levels 3-5) 1,080 90% 85 7% 8 0,07% 16 1,33%

High skilled

production (Levels 6-8) 870 86% 87 9% 16 1,58% 22 2,18%

High skilled super-

vision (Levels 9-12) 5,477 91% 414 7% 46 0,76% 72 1,19%

Senior management

(Levels 13-16) 3,497 93% 212 6% 16 0,42% 36 0,95%

Total 10,984 91% 802 7% 86 0,71% 147 1,21%

Programme Number Number Vacancy Number of

of posts of posts rate % posts filled additional

filled to the establishment

Management Support Structures 6 4 33% 1

Evaluation & Accreditation 19 12 37% 1

Quality Assurance of Assessment 16 13 19% -

Qualifications, Curriculum & Certification 9 5 44% 3

Research & Development 5 3 40% -

Finance & Administration 20 12 40% -

Total 75 49 35% 5

Programme Number Number Vacancy Number of

of posts of posts rate % posts filled additional

filled to the establishment

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 1 1 - -

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 24 14 42% 2

High skilled production (Levels 6-8) 13 6 54% 1

High skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 30 22 27% 1

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 7 6 14% 1

Total 75 49 35% 5
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TTTTTableableableableable
3.13.13.13.13.1

Job evaluations

2006/07

TTTTTableableableableable
2.32.32.32.32.3

The tables on the following page provide a summary of the number of employees whose
salary positions were upgraded due to their positions being reviewed.

3. Job evaluation

Job evaluation is a way of ensuring that work of equal value is remunerated equally. Within
a framework, any job can be evaluated or re-evaluated in the organisation and in terms of
regulations, all salary Level 9 vacancies or higher must be evaluated before they are filled.

The following table summarises the number of jobs that were evaluated during 2006/
2007.

Critical Number Number Vacancy Number of

occupations of posts of posts rate % posts filled additional

filled to the establishment

Administrative related 22 14 36% 3

Cleaners 1 1 - -

Communication related 2 1 50% -

Financial related 5 4 20% -

Human resource related 4 4 - -

Secretarial related 2 1 50% -

Information technology related 6 2 67% -

Assessment 11 7 36% -

Accreditation 11 7 36% 1

Research 4 2 50% -

Senior management 7 6 14% 1

Total 75 49 35% 5

Salary band Number Number % of Number % of Number % of

of posts of jobs posts of posts posts of posts posts

evaluated evaluated upgraded upgraded downgraded downgraded

Lower skilled

(Levels 1-2) 1 - - - - - -

Skilled

(Levels 3-5) 24 - - - - - -

High skilled

production

(Levels 6-8) 13 - - - - - -

High skilled

supervision

(Levels 9-12) 30 30 100% 2 7% - -

Senior management

service band A 5 - - - - - -

Senior management

service band B 1 - - - - - -

Senior management

service band C 1 - - - - - -

Total 75 30 100% 2 7% - -

Employment and vacancies by critical

occupation 31 March 2007
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TTTTTableableableableable
4.24.24.24.24.2

TTTTTableableableableable
4.14.14.14.14.1

Annual turnover by critical occupation

2006/07

Annual turnover by

salary band

TTTTTableableableableable
3.23.23.23.23.2

Profile of employees whose salary positions were upgraded due

to their positions being reviewed and upgraded  2006/07

Beneficiaries African Asian Coloured White Total

Female - - - 1 1

Male - - - 1 1

Total - - - 2 2

Employees with a disability - - - - -

4. Employment changes

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year. The
turnover rates provide an indication of trends in the employment profile of Umalusi. The
following tables provide a summary of turnover rates by salary band (Table 4.1) and by
critical occupations (Table 4.2).

Salary band Number of Appointments Terminations Turnover rate

employees per

band as on

1 April 2006

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 1 - - -

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 13 8 4 31%

High skilled production (Levels 6-8) 7 0 1 14%

High skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 22 8 3 14%

Senior management service band A 5 1 2 40%

Senior management service band B 1 - -

Senior management service band C 1 - - -

Total 50 17 10 20%

Occupations Number of Appointments Terminations Turnover rate

employees per

band as on

1 April 2006

Administrative related 10 6 2 20%

Cleaners 1 - - -

Communication related 1 - - -

Human resource related 4 - - -

Financial related 4 2 2 50%

Secretarial related 1 - - -

Information technology related 2 - 1 50%

Assessment 7 1 - -

Accreditation 7 4 1 14%

Research 3 1 2 67%

Qualification 4 2 - -

Senior management 6 1 2 33%

Total 50 17 10 20%
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TTTTTableableableableable
4.34.34.34.34.3

Reasons why staff left Umalusi

2006/2007

TTTTTableableableableable
4.54.54.54.54.5

Promotions by

salary band

TTTTTableableableableable
4.44.44.44.44.4

Promotions by

critical occupation

Table 4.3 records the major reasons why staff left Umalusi.

Termination type Number % of total employment

Resignation 10 20%

Total 10 20%

Total number of employees who left as

a % of the total employment 20% 20%

Critical occupations Number of Promotions Salary level Progression Notch

employees per to another promotions to another progression

 occupation as salary as  a % of notch as  a % of

on April 2006 level employees within salary employees

by occupation range level by occupation

Administrative related 9 1 11% 5 56%

Cleaners 1 - - 1 100%

Communication related 1 - - - -

Human resource related 4 - - 2 50%

Financial related 4 - - 2 50%

Secretarial related 2 - - 1 50%

Information technology related 2 - - 2 100%

Assessment 7 - - 6 86%

Accreditation 7 - - 2 29%

Research 3 - - 1 33%

Qualification 4 - - 4 100%

Senior management 6 - - 5 83%

Total 50 1 11% 31 62%

Salary bands Number of Promotions Salary level Progression Notch

of employees to another promotions to another progression

 1 April 2006 salary as  a % of notch as  a % of

level employees within salary employees

by occupation range level by occupation

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 1 - - 1 100%

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 9 - - 8 89%

High skilled production (Levels 6-8) 15 1 6% 4 27%

High skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 19 - - 11 58%

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 6 - - 5 83%

Total 50 1 6% 29 58%
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TTTTTableableableableable
5.25.25.25.25.2

Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the

occupational bands as on 31 March 2007

TTTTTableableableableable
5.15.15.15.15.1

Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the

occupational categories as on 31 March 2007

5. Employment equity

The tables in this section are presented in the format prescribed by the Employment
Equity Act, 55 of 1998.

Occupational Male Female

categories

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Legislators, senior

officials and managers - 1 1 1 2 - - 2 7

Professionals 3 1 - 2 2 - 1 3 12

Technicians and associate-

professionals 4 - 1 - 2 1 - 3 11

Clerks 6 - - 1 12 - 2 1 22

Elementary occupations - - - - 1 - - - 1

Total permanent 13 2 2 4 19 1 3 9 53

Non-permanent employees - - - - - - - - -

Total 13 2 2 4 19 1 3 9 53

Employees with disabilities - - - - - - - - -

Occupational Male Female

bands

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Senior management - 1 1 1 2 - - 2 7

Professionally qualified and

experienced specialists and mid-

management 3 1 - 2 2 - 1 3 12

Skilled technical and academically

qualified workers, junior

management 4 - 1 - 2 1 - 3 11

Semi-skilled and discretionary

decision making 6 - - 1 12 - 2 1 22

Unskilled and defined

decision making - - - - 1 - - - 1

Total permanent 13 2 2 4 19 1 3 9 53

Non-permanent - - - - - - - - -

Total 13 2 2 4 19 1 3 9 53
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TTTTTableableableableable
5.55.55.55.55.5

Terminations

2006/2007

TTTTTableableableableable
5.35.35.35.35.3

Recruitment

2006/2007

Occupational Male Female

bands

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Senior management - - - 1 1 - - - 1

Professionally qualified and

experienced specialists and

mid-management 2 - - - 1 1 1 3 8

Skilled technical and academically

qualified workers, junior

management, supervisors - - - 2 6 - - - 8

Total permanent 2 - - 2 8 1 1 3 17

Non-permanent - - - - - - - - -

Total 2 - - 2 8 1 1 3 17

Occupational Male Female

bands

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Professionally qualified and

experienced specialists and

mid-management 4 - - - 2 1 - - 7

Skilled technical and academically

qualified workers, junior

management, supervisors 2 - - - 1 - - - 3

Total permanent 6 - - - 3 1 - - 10

Non-permanent - - - - - - - - -

Total 6 - - - 3 1 - - 10

Table 5.4 Promotions – no promotions for 2006/2007.

UMALUSI Annual Report 2006/2007

Left to right:

Shireen Badat

Miriam Mathews

Chaile Makaleng

Mpho Mavhunga

Sebongile Mkhatshwa

Lerato Molai

Thinus Wessels

Virginia Mashishi

Gerrit Jansen van

Vuuren

Marie Botha

Johanna Choba

Tlhupi Moroke

Julia Ramaru

Carien van der Walt

Siphamandla Nxumalo

           48



TTTTTableableableableable
6.26.26.26.26.2

Performance rewards by salary bands for personnel below senior management service

2006/2007

TTTTTableableableableable
6.16.16.16.16.1

Performance rewards

by race, gender and disability

6. Performance rewards

To encourage good performance, Umalusi granted the following performance rewards
during 2006/2007. The information is presented in terms of race, gender and disability
(Table 6.1) salary bands (Table 6.2) and critical occupations (Table 6.3)

Number of Number of % of Cost Average

beneficiaries employees total cost per

in within employee

group group (R’000)

African

Male 5 13 38% 29 6

Female 13 19 68% 94 7

Asian

Male 1 2 50% 12 12

Female - 3 - - -

Coloured

Male 1 2 50% 21 21

Female - 1 - - -

White

Male 2 4 50% 26 13

Female 5 9 56% 56 11

Employees with a disability - - - - -

Total 27 53 51% 238 9
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Beneficiary Cost

profile

Number of Number of % of Cost Average cost
beneficiaries employees in group total within group (R’000) per employee (R’000)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 1 1 100% 2 2

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 7 17 41% 22 3

Highly skilled production

(Levels 6-8) 2 5 40% 6 3

Highly skilled supervision

(Levels 9-12) 12 24 50% 106 9

Total 22 47 47% 136 6



TTTTTableableableableable
7.27.27.27.27.2

Annual leave 1 January 2006 –

31 December 2007

TTTTTableableableableable
7.17.17.17.17.1

Sick leave 1 January 2006 –

31 December 2007

TTTTTableableableableable
6.36.36.36.36.3

Performance related rewards (cash bonus) by salary band for

senior management services

7. Leave utilisation for the period 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2007

The need to monitor sick leave within the Public Service was identified by the Public Service
Commission. An indication of the use of sick leave (Table 7.1) and disability leave (Table 7.2)
is provided in the following tables.

Beneficiary Cost

profile

Number of Number of % of Cost Average cost
beneficiaries employees in group total within group (R’000) per employee (R’000)

Band A 4 4 100% 67 17

Band B 1 1 - - -

Band C 1 1 100% 37 37

Band D - - - - -

Total 6 6 100% 104 17

Table 7.2 summarises the utilisation of annual leave. Management prevents high levels of
annual leave accrued being paid at the time of termination of service by encouraging the
optimum use of leave.

Salary band Total days % days with Number of Average

medical employees days per

certificate using sick employee

leave

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 5 90% 1 5

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 44 90% 14 3

Highly skilled production

(Levels 6-8) 27 60% 6 4,5

Highly skilled supervision

(Levels 9-12) 70 90% 19 3,7

Senior management

(Bands A-C) 32 80% 7 4,5

Total 178 82% 47 3,79

Salary band Total days taken Average per employee

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 36 36

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 195 11

Highly skilled production  (Levels 6-8) 126 25

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 286 12

Senior management (Bands A -C) 102 17

Total 745 14
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TTTTTableableableableable
8.28.28.28.28.2

Details of health promotion and

HIV/AIDS programmes

TTTTTableableableableable
8.18.18.18.18.1

Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

TTTTTableableableableable
7.37.37.37.37.3

Leave payouts

Units/categories of employees identified to Key steps taken

be at risk of contracting HIV and to reduce the risks

related diseases (if any)

None HIV/AIDS organisational

policy implemented

The tables following summarise payments made to employees as a result of leave that
was not taken and paid out.

8. HIV/AIDS and health promotion programmes

Salary band Total amount Number of Average

(R’000) employees payment per

employee (R’000)

Current leave payout on termination

of service for 2006/2007 94 12 7,83

Total 94 12 7,83

Questions Yes No Details if ‘yes’

1. Has the organisation designated a member of the Senior

Management Services to implement the provisions

contained in Part VI.E of Chapter 1 of the Public Service

Regulations, 2001? •

2. Does the organisation have a dedicated unit or has it

designated specific staff members to promote the health

and well being of the employees? • Human resources sub-unit

3. Has the organisation introduced an employee assistance EAP implemented June 2001

or health promotion programme for the employees? • through ICAS

4. Has the organisation established (a) committee(s) as

contemplated in Part VI E.5(e) of Chapter 1 of the Public

Service Regulations, 2001? •

5. Has the organisation reviewed its employment policies and

practices to ensure that these do not unfairly discriminate

against employees on the basis of their HIV status? • HIV/AIDS policy

6. Has the organisation introduced measures to protect

HIV-positive employees or those perceived to be HIV-

positive from discrimination? • HIV/AIDS policy

7. Does the organisation encourage its employees to Through the Employee

undergo voluntary counseling and testing? • Assistance Programme

8. Has the organisation developed measures/indicators to EAP implemented June 2006

monitor and evaluate the impact of its health through ICAS with monthly

promotion programme? • reporting
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TTTTTableableableableable
11.111.111.111.111.1

Report on consultant appointments using

appropriated funds

TTTTTableableableableable
9.29.29.29.29.2

Disputes lodged with Labour Relations Councils

2006/07

9. Labour relations

No grievances were lodged during 2006/2007, hence there is no Table 9.1.

10. Skills development

Number % of total

Number of disputes lodged 1 100%

11. Utilisation of consultants

Umalusi makes use of part-time moderators and monitors on a periodic basis in the
examination cycle. The organisation finds this to be an effective means of fulfilling its
mandate.

Training needs identified at start of

reporting period

Occupational Gender Number Skills pro- Skills pro-

categories employees grammes grammes

as at and other and other

1 April 2006/7 short courses short courses

provided

Male 9 9 8

Female 10 10 3

Male 5 5 5

Female 6 6 5

Male 7 7 6

Female 15 15 12

Male - - -

Female 1 1 -

Male 21 21 19

Female 32 32 20

53 53 39

Project title Total number of Value in Rand

consultants (R’000)

Moderators 225 3,587

Monitors 31 302

Consultants (other) 39 999

Total 295 4,888

TTTTTableableableableable
10.110.110.110.110.1

Training needs identified and training provided

2006/07

Legislators, senior officials and managers

Technicians and associate professionals

Clerks

Elementary occupations

Subtotal

Total
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ABET Adult Basic Education and Training

AET Adult Education and Training

AFET Adult Further Education and Training

APPETD Association of Public and Private Education

Development Trainers

ASECA Alternate Secondary Curriculum for Adults

BCVO Beweging vir Christelik-volkseie Onderwys

CASS Continuous Assessment

CTA Common Tasks of Assessment

CHE Council for Higher Education

CHET Council for Higher Education

Transformation

DOE Department of Education

EAP Employee Assistance Programme

EE Employment Equity

ETQA Education and Training Quality Assuror

FET Further Education and Training

FETC Further Education and Training Certificate

GET General Education and Training

GETC General Education and Training Certificate

GFET General and Further Education and Training

List of acronyms

ICAS Independent Counselling and Advisory Services

IEB Independent Examinations Board

MIS Management Information System

NAISA National Alliance of Independent School

Associations

NC(V) National Certificate (Vocational)

NGO Non-Governmental Organisation

NLRD National Learner Record Database

NQF National Qualifications Framework

NSC National Senior Certificate

OBE Outcomes-Based Education

PALC Public Adult Learning Centre

PAYE Pay as You Earn

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

SAFCERT South African Certification Council

SAQA South African Qualifications Authority

SC Senior Certificate

SETA Sector Education and Training Authority

SITA State Information Technology Agency

SLA Service Level Agreement

TELP Tertiary Education Linkages Project
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Staff 2006/2007
Management Support Structures

and Governance

Eugene du Plooy

Peliwe Lolwana

Jabu Maphalala

Philistas Masinga

Mark Potterton

Jeremy Thomas

Qualifications, Curriculum

and Certification

Zolile Hlabeni

Annemarie Janse van Rensburg

Sindy Mafanga-Kibi

Lerato Molai

Mandla Mthembu

Mbuleleni Myataza

Thabiso Ramaphakela

Mpho Mavhunga

Research and Development

Matseleng Allais

Shireen Badat

Elizabeth Burroughs

Ramadimetja Phaladi

Moeketsane Senaoana

Finance and Administration
including Information Technology and

Human Resource Management

Marie Botha

Johanna Choba

Gerrit Jansen van Vuuren

Virginia Mashishi

Oswald Masia

Miriam Mathews

Olga Matlala

Sebongile Mkhatshwa

Pule Moroe

Louis Ramakulukusha

Julia Ramaru

John Soele

Carien van der Walt

Thinus Wessels

Quality Assurance of
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Confidence Dikgole

Marisa du Toit

Martha Malapane

Frans Mashilo

Prince Masilo

Robert Mathalese

Zodwa Modimakwane

Sandile Ndaba

Siphamandla Nxumalo

Ntabiseng Shikwane

Prudence Small

Andy Thulo

Eardley Twigg

Evaluation and

Accreditation

Veenay Bennideen

Krishnaveni Chatty

Heather Erasmus

Zitha Kumalo

Mary-Louise Madalane

Chaile Makaleng

Estella Michael

Tsholofelo Mokonoto

Tlhupi Moroke

Vijayen Naidoo

Andrew Ngwandula

Chris Nyangintsimbi

Eugenie Rabe

Kholofelo Rabotho

Kate Setjie

Maureen Sigamla
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